Bill 13

BY-LAW -2019

To amend By-law 758-79 of the former City of Toronto, being a by-law to designate the property at 495-517 Wellington Street West as being of architectural value or interest.

Whereas By-law 758-79 of the former City of Toronto designated the property at 495-517 Wellington Street West under Part IV of the Ontario Heritage Act as being of architectural value or interest; and

Whereas the Ontario Heritage Act authorizes the Council of a municipality to amend designating by-laws to clarify or correct the statement explaining a property's cultural heritage value or interest or the description of the property's heritage attributes and to otherwise revise the language of the by-law to make it consistent with the requirements of the Act; and

Whereas authority was granted by Council to amend the reasons for designation and the legal description in By-law 758-79; and

Whereas the amended reasons for designation are set out in Schedule A to this by-law; and

Whereas the amended legal description is set out in Schedule B to this by-law; and

Whereas the Council of the City of Toronto has caused to be served upon the owners of the land and premises known as 517 Wellington Street West (including entrance addresses at 495 Wellington Street West, 31 Portland Street and 510 Front Street West) and upon the Ontario Heritage Trust, Notice of Intention to designate the property, and has caused the Notice of Intention to be posted on the City’s web site for a period of 30 days in accordance with Municipal Code Chapter 162, Notice, Public, Article II, §162-4.1. Notice requirements under the Ontario Heritage Act; and

Whereas no notice of objection was served upon the Clerk of the municipality;

The Council of the City of Toronto enacts:

1. By-law 758-79 is amended by deleting Schedules A and B and replacing them with Schedules A and B attached to this by-law.

2. The City Solicitor is authorized to cause a copy of this by-law to be registered against the property described in Schedule B to this by-law in the proper Land Registry Office.

3. The City Clerk is authorized to cause a copy of this by-law to be served upon the owners of the property at 517 Wellington Street East (including entrance addresses at 495 Wellington Street West, 31 Portland Street and 510 Front Street West) and upon the Ontario Heritage Trust and to cause notice of this by-law to be posted on the City's web site for a period of 30 days in accordance with Municipal Code Chapter 162, Notice, Public, Article II, §162-4.1. Notice requirements under the Ontario Heritage Act.
Enacted and passed on December 2018.

Frances Nunziata, Speaker

Ulli S. Watkiss, City Clerk

(Seal of the City)
SCHEDULE A

REVISED STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE AND REASONS FOR DESIGNATION

City of Toronto By-law 758-79 designating the property at 495-517 Wellington Street West under Part IV, Section 29 of the Ontario Heritage Act is revised to update the cultural heritage values and attributes according to the 2005 amendments to the Ontario Heritage Act. Now known as 517 Wellington Street West (with entrance addresses at 495 Wellington Street West, 31 Portland Street and 510 Front Street West), the Copp Clark Company Complex meets Ontario Regulation 9/06, the provincial criteria prescribed for municipal designation, under all three categories of design, associative and contextual value.

Description

Located on the southeast corner of Wellington and Portland Streets in the King-Spadina neighbourhood, the property at 517 Wellington Street West contains a complex of buildings commissioned by the Copp Clark Company Limited (later known as the Copp Clark Publishing Company). At the east end of the site, the building identified by the entrance address of 495 Wellington Street West comprises a three-storey factory building with a two-storey rear (south) wing dating to 1909 that was extended to the south by a three-storey addition built in 1928. Directly west, the four-storey office and warehouse building was completed in 1912. All the buildings were designed by the Toronto architectural partnership of Wickson and Gregg. The property at 517 Wellington Street West was listed on the City of Toronto Inventory of Heritage Properties (now known as the Heritage Register) in 1974 and designated under Part IV, Section 29 of the Ontario Heritage Act in 1979 by By-law 758-79. In October 2017, Council designated the King-Spadina Heritage Conservation District (HCD) under Part V of the Ontario Heritage Act by By-law 1111-2017, which was amended by By-law 1241-2017. In 2018, the HCD was under appeal. The King-Spadina HCD Plan (2016) identifies 517 Wellington Street West as a contributing heritage property.

Statement of Cultural Heritage Value

The property at 517 Wellington Street West has cultural heritage value for its design as a complex of early 20th century industrial buildings sharing complementary Edwardian Classical detailing from the most popular style of the pre-World War I era. Identified by its somber red brick work, symmetrical appearance and restrained classical detailing, Edwardian Classicism was particularly popular for industrial buildings, including the Copp Clark Company Complex. The style is evident on the factory building (1909) where the north elevation on Wellington Street West incorporates a frontispiece with a parapet and stone detailing that contains a classically-detailed entrance at its base. Directly west, the larger combined office building and warehouse (1912) is viewed from both Wellington and Portland streets and is particularly distinguished by the treatment of the corners with the oversized piers and the stepped parapets, the stone embellishments along the north and west rooflines, and the cornice that continues from the north to the west elevation.

The Copp Clark Company Complex is valued for its association with the Toronto architectural firm of Wickson and Gregg, which designed all of the buildings. Headed by A. Frank Wickson
and Alfred Holden Gregg, the partners opened their practice in 1905 and received immediate acclaim for their design for the Carnegie-funded Central Reference Library at College and St. George streets (completed in 1909 in association with architect A. H. Chapman) and Timothy Eaton Memorial Church and Sunday School (1911-1913) on St. Clair Avenue West. Both had previous experience designing factories and warehouses in the King-Spadina neighbourhood, which continued with the Turnbull Elevator Company Building (1906) on John Street, a trio of buildings adjoining the intersection of King and Duncan streets (1906-1907), and the Copp Clark Company's Wellington Street complex. The firm and its successors, Wickson, Gregg and Blackwell designed the subsequent additions to the latter site.

The property at 517 Wellington Street West is associated historically with the publishing industry in Toronto and Canada as the location beginning in 1909 of the Copp Clark Company Limited. The origins of the firm dated to the 1840s when Scottish-born bookseller and publisher, Hugh Scobie opened a stationery store in Toronto that evolved into a printing and bookbinding enterprise. Following Scobie's death, part of his business was acquired by partners Thomas Maclear and George Elliott Thomas, whose employees included William Walter Copp (1826-1894). In 1869, Copp and Henry James Clark continued the enterprise as Copp, Clark and Company while suspending the retail operation. The "Canadian Almanac" founded by Scobie remained a cornerstone of Copp Clark's varied publications, which expanded in the late 19th century to include maps, school textbooks and popular literature. During the interwar era, controlling interest in Copp Clark was acquired by the descendants of George Elliott Thomas, who retained the company until 1955 when it was renamed the Copp Clark Publishing Company. In the 21st century specializing in products and services relating to global financial markets, Copp Clark remains Canada's longest continuously operating book publisher.

The Copp Clark Company Complex has associative value for its contribution to the understanding of the historical evolution of the King-Spadina neighbourhood, which developed on part of the Military Reserve that was established in the 18th century west of the Town of York and was subsequently subdivided and sold in the early 19th century to accommodate the expansion of the City of Toronto. The plan of subdivision incorporated two important public squares (Victoria Memorial Square, with its military burial ground, and Clarence Square) that were connected by an unusually wide boulevard named Wellington Place as the setting of upscale housing. Most of the original housing stock was removed as part of the transformation of the King-Spadina neighbourhood from its origins as an institutional and residential district to Toronto's new manufacturing centre after the Great Fire of 1904. The Copp Clark Company Complex was amongst the earliest industrial sites on Wellington Street West, west of Spadina Avenue, and contributed to the transformation of the formerly residential enclave.

Contextually, the property at 517 Wellington Street West supports the historical character of the King-Spadina neighbourhood as it developed and evolved in the 19th and 20th centuries from its origins as an institutional and residential community to the city's industrial centre. In King-Spadina, the Copp Clark Company Complex reflects the conversion in the early 20th century of the section of Wellington Street West originally known as Wellington Place from a residential enclave between Clarence Square and Victoria Memorial Square to part of Toronto's manufacturing sector. As one of the earliest industrial developments on the street, the Copp Clark Company Complex is historically, visually and physically linked to its setting on an expansive corner lot where it is viewed from Wellington, Portland and Front streets.
Heritage Attributes

The heritage attributes of the Copp Clark Company Complex at 517 Wellington Street West are:

- The placement, setback and orientation of the complex of buildings on the southeast corner of Portland Street, consisting of the 3-storey factory building (1909) with the two-storey south wing (1909) and the three-storey south addition (1928), and the adjoining four-storey office and warehouse building (1912)

The heritage attributes of the 1909 Factory Building (entrance address at 495 Wellington Street West) are:

- The scale, form and massing of the three-storey building above the raised base with the flat-headed window openings on the north elevation
- The flat roofline with the parapet with the stone diamond motifs
- The materials, with the red brick cladding and the brick, stone and wood detailing
- The principal (north) elevation, which is organized into five bays by brick piers with stone coping (at the west end, the glazed link connecting this building to the 1912 office building and warehouse is not original to the design)
- On the north elevation, in the second bay from the east end, the frontispiece (under the parapet) with the main entrance placed at the base in a surround with classical detailing (the door has been replaced)
- The fenestration on the north elevation, with the mixture of flat-headed and segmental-arched openings with the brick flat arches, the stone sills and, on some of the openings in the frontispiece, the stone keystones
- The detailing on the north elevation, with the cornice with the brick corbels beneath the third-floor openings
- The east elevation, which is viewed from Wellington Street West and is devoid of openings
- The two-storey south wing (1909), with the raised base and the symmetrically-organized segmental-arched openings with the brick and stone detailing on the east and west elevations
- The three-storey south addition (1928), which is L-shaped with brick cladding and symmetrically-placed fenestration (the fourth storey is an addition)

The heritage attributes of the 1912 Office and Warehouse Building are:

- The scale, form and massing of the four-storey near-square plan above the raised base with the flat-headed window openings
- The flat roof with the stepped parapets with the coping on the northeast, northwest and southwest corners, the penthouse at the southeast corner and the chimney on the south end
- The materials, with the red brick cladding and the brick, stone and wood detailing
- On the north elevation on Wellington Street West and the west elevation on Portland Street, the corner frontispieces and the brick piers with the decorative stonework that organize the segmental-arched window openings in the first (ground) and fourth floors and the flat-headed window openings in the second and third floors
- The entrance on the north elevation, which is placed in a classical surround in the westernmost bay, and the cargo entrance on the west elevation
• The south elevation, which is viewed from Portland Street and has flat-headed and segmental-arched openings
• The detailing, with the brick and stone detailing on the window openings on the north, west and south elevations, and the cornice that extends above the first-floor openings across the north and west elevations
SCHEDULE B
LEGAL DESCRIPTION

PIN 21240-0019 (LT)

PCL A-1 SEC A540; LT 16 SEC A PL MILITARY RESERVE TORONTO; PT LT 4 SEC A PL MILITARY RESERVE TORONTO; PT LT 17 SEC A PL MILITARY RESERVE TORONTO; LT A PL 540 TORONTO; LT B PL 540 TORONTO; LT A PL 890 TORONTO; LT B PL 890 TORONTO; LT C PL 890 TORONTO; LTD PL 890 TORONTO; LT E PL 890 TORONTO
PT 1 66R8249; TORONTO

CITY OF TORONTO